
Special Committee of the Whole 
Monday, July 26, 2021 at 6:30 P.M. 

Library at Five Points, Washington, 360 N. Wilmore Road, Washington, IL 
 

 
Mayor Manier called the special Committee of the Whole meeting of July 26, 2021 to order 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
Present: Alderpersons Adams, Blundy, Brownfield, Butler, Cobb, Dingledine, Stevens and Yoder 

Police Chief McCoy, and Attorney Keith Braskish 
 
Also Present: Finance Director Baxter, P & D Director Oliphant, City Engineer Carr, and Public Works 

Director Schone, City Treasurer Strubhar and press 
 
 

MINUTES 

 
1. Aldermen wishing to be heard: none provided 

 

2. Public Comments: Troy Pudik came forward along with Sam Miller regarding the Phase 2B Trunkline. He 
shared that he has an affidavit from Gary Deiters who owns property along the proposed line. Mr. Pudik 
referenced the resolution that was passed on October 21, 2019. He shared that this resolution approved the 
preliminary engineering study, the route alignment and allowed the City to move forward with permitting. 
He stated that landowners were not made aware of the project at that time. He stated this is why they 
weren’t at the meetings. He stated that Alderperson Dingledine asked if there were any preliminary 
discussions with the family. He also stated that previous Public Works Chairman, Ed Andrews stated that 
discussion had occurred. Mr. Pudik asked to rescind the resolution.  
     Tom Gross repeated the previous statements. He stated that he reviewed the minutes from the meeting 
when the resolution was discussed. He said he can’t blame the Council because they were given wrong 
information and that the resolution should be rescinded. He stated that the wrong information was sent the 
IEPA to apply for a loan. Mr. Gross also stated that on April 6, 2020, Alderperson Adams made the 
statement that the landowners were not on board with the project and some members of City Council 
contacted the landowners to get their own information. He asked for an environmental study on multiple 
routes. He also stated that this project will cost over $20 million. 
     Sam Miller, property owner, repeated the previous statements. He noted that he received a letter dated 
February 4, 2020 from Caskaskia stating that the purpose was to introduce them to the project and gain 
access to the property and the homeowners did not know about the project until they received this letter. 
     Brian Fischer from Main Street came forward to seek due diligence and process from Council. He 
shared his local government experience. He stated that after reviewing documents he had three thoughts. 
He noted the increase in cost, he feels the City only looked at one option which is Route B, wondered why 
three alternatives weren’t explored if they were contracted, and he feels there is a lack of transparency.  He 
asked why the price increased. He stated that the Strand route is based on City priorities. He stated that he 
would like Council to pause and reevaluate the project.  
     Brett Pudik shared that their engineers could not make it tonight but sent questions through him. First, a 
question regarding the improvements needed at STP2 due to elevation constraints and the costs to do so. He 



shared that the Strand report details the impact of the improvements or lack of improvements. He noted that 
Strand recommended the inflow should be higher than the pumping station but Route B brings the inflow 
lower than the pumping station and routes north of Farm Creek give greater flexibility of height which will 
defer the need for replacement. The second question referenced the depth of the proposed Route B that is 
impacted due to the location of the current sewer line which will require deeper manholes. He stated that a 
route north of Farm Creek would have an average less than that of Route B and less of an impact on trees 
and wetlands. He asked why the routes north of Farm Creek were not evaluated with the same detail as 
Route B.  
     A resident who didn’t share her name asked about crossing Farm Creek with the new line if crossing the 
creek with the old line was not preferred. She stated that the current line was exposed 30-33 years after it 
was constructed. She also asked if 93% of the proposed route is covered by forest, why hasn’t the City 
explored more environmentally friendly alternatives.  

3. BUSINESS ITEMS 

1. Phase 2B Trunkline Discussion: City Engineer Dennis Carr introduced Mike Waldren of Strand and 
Associates to provide project details. Mr. Waldren shared a visual presentation regarding the work that 
went into evaluating the route that is presented. He shared a map of the sanitary sewer service area that 
showed it runs from the east to the west along the south side of town. He noted that it crosses Farm Creek 
around 12-16 times. He explained that when they stated they wanted to lessen the impact of Farm Creek by 
reducing the number of crossings, not avoiding the creek altogether. He shared another consideration was 
the location of the treatment plants being on the south side of the railroad tracks. He went on to share that 
the original purpose of this project is due to the IEPA mandated closer of Treatment Plant #1. The age and 
location of the current sewer line were also a factor. He shared that creeks are often considered as locations 
because they are low lying, however, the current line was not deep enough and manholes were too close to 
it. Mr. Waldren noted that it is difficult to access when it crosses the creek and noted that future 
development could exceed the current sewer line. He went on to share that they evaluated five primary 
routes, just like the landowners evaluated several routes, before narrowing it down. He shared that Option 
A just replaced the existing line which was ruled out due to the costs to bypass the current flow during 
installation as well as it being intrusive to landowners. He shared that Option B follows the railroad with a 
few crossings of the creek, however a few more crossings were identified because the oxbow had moved to 
the north. He shared that Option C had similar issues as Option A with its impact on floodplains. He noted 
that it is normal to start to rule out routes as problems are discovered. Mr. Waldren shared Option D that 
runs south and stated that they are trying to stay along property lines. Also, Option E has a similar route 
that the landowners are proposing. He provided details about the lengths in sewer sections and the depths of 
the needed manholes. He noted that the depth of concern is approximately 30-feet deep and the alternative 
route depths go up to 90 feet. He shared that these would cause the cost of direction drilling to be 2-3.5 
times more than the cost of traditional trench construction. He also noted on the proposed route that 13 
manholes would be at a depth of 40-80 feet and 7 manholes would be 50-100 feet deep and these pose a 
danger. He stated that Route E that runs along the north side of the creek, contains multiple crossings at the 
creek, railroad and tributaries as well as concerns with the depth of manholes. He went on to explain the 
requirement to have manholes every 500-600 feet which would result in at least four manholes at 50-80 feet 
deep in that route. Mr. Waldren then focused on Route B that is significantly shorter and shallower than the 
other routes. He also shared that while they are in the area of the existing sewer, they can remove it as they 
are installing the new line. He noted that this line does cross the creek a few times but less than the 
previous line and there are fewer trenchless locations which will be a cost savings. Mr. Waldren then 
reviewed the two options shared by the landowners. He noted that their option D-1 is very similar to the 
Strand option E as well as Option E-2 that is near Cummings Lane. He shared specifics about depths, 
tributary crossings, wetlands, two railroad crossings which require extra casing, and extra lengths of 
trenchless construction. He shared that proposed route E-3 would be easier to consider because it cuts out a 
hill but it interrupts more tributaries as well as the two railroad crossings and extra depths. Concerning 
accessibility, Mr. Waldren wants to put trees back and replace impacted wetlands. He also noted that they 
want to use the access routes that are currently used by Ameren and the property owners and it will be 
maintained. He also shared that this was purposely proposed along the railroad right of way to avoid 



bisecting private properties. He noted that accessing the proposed alternate route would require them to 
drive down Cummings Lane a across private property to gain access. Mr. Waldren shared information 
regarding the already existing easement that is on the three properties and the 5-7 properties that would 
require easements for the proposed alternative route. He went on to share the environmental impacts. He 
shared that they have to start early to get on the list for IEPA funding. He also shared that the wetland 
impact studies come after the permit process is started and they use previously obtained wetland studies as 
a starting point. He shared that they have been working with the Army Corps to avoid wetland areas and 
feels it is unfair to say that the alternative routes don’t affect wetlands. He noted a future need for 
floodplain studies because not all estimated floodplains flood with a 100-year flooding event. He went on 
to address the impact on trees, stating that it is a concern of his as well. He also noted archeological affects 
were previously impacted when the railroad went in. Mr. Waldren shared that areas where the line will 
cross the creek, will be revised and updated which will include the replanting of eroded banks. He then 
shared that the opinion of probable costs reveal that the proposed alternatives would be significantly higher 
due to the amount of trenchless drilling. He noted that the original estimates were close to $6 million with a 
contingency of 25% for additional discoveries and this is not unusual. He shared that the projected costs for 
alternative routes were $15-22 million and alternatives D-1 and E-2 were projected at $10 and $11 million. 
He shared differences in the data provided by the property owners including average depths of manholes, 
how much wetlands, and how many crossings. He then addressed that mandated replacement of the 
pumping station is not driven by the depth of the sewer and replacing it at this time allows the City greater 
flexibility for other improvements. In regards to the stated cost of $3.5 million, he was not sure where that 
came from because their study estimated $7.8 million, then the pump station would be added on to that to 
make the estimated cost $10.6 million. They requested $13 million from the IEPA to cover unforeseen 
costs in design engineering, construction observation, legal and loan fees. He expects that this will be less 
than $13 million. He noted that he feels that all the goals have been met.  
     Mr. Carr stated that it is fairly uncommon for the Army Corps of Engineers to request an archeological 
study but this will be done on any alignment that is looked at.  
     Alderperson Adams asked who would have been responsible for reaching out to the landowners. Mr. 
Carr shared that with large scale projects, it is uncommon to bring in all possible affected landowners until 
routes are ruled out because there will always be a landowner who disapproves of each option. Alderperson 
Adams clarified that Council was told that landowners were approached and on board but it doesn’t appear 
to have happened. Alderperson Butler stated that in August 2019 a contract with Caskaskia was approved 
that included a letter that was to go to the landowners but it wasn’t sent out in a timely manner. 
Alderperson Adams shared that he feels they weren’t provided all the information and that costs have 
increased in other projects. Alderperson Stevens stated that after reviewing the August 2019 minutes, it 
stated that seven parcels were involved, then in September it stated the next step was to decide the final 
alignment, then there was a presentation by Strand in October that stated there were five parcels, then the 
next week the resolution was presented. Alderperson Butler stated the unfortunate thing is the preliminary 
study did not state that alternate routes were considered, we don’t have a choice to not do this and the 
communication could have been better. Alderperson Dingledine noted that construction standards have 
improved since the previous system was built and that our City has doubled as well. He also shared that 
Council was led to believe that staff, at that time, was communicating with the landowners but now we 
need to move forward. Mayor Manier asked that we move forward to make a decision that is best for the 
residents. Alderperson Adams stated that he would like to evaluate if anyone would vote differently on the 
resolution knowing today’s information. Mayor Manier asked for further discussion at the next Committee 
of the Whole meeting. All agreed 

Adjournment: At 9:21 p.m. Alderman Cobb moved and Alderman Dingledine seconded to adjourn.  Motion 
carried unanimously by voice vote. 
  

 
 
             
                   Valeri L. Brod, City Clerk 


















































































